
Pocono Township BOC Agenda  April 5, 2021                  

1 
 

 

 
POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS  

AGENDA 

April 5, 2021 | 7:00 p.m. 

ZOOM Dial-In #: 646-558-8656 
Meeting ID: 939 5908 6177 

Passcode: 456548 
  

Open Meeting 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll Call 

 

Public Comments   
 

We ask that any resident making public comment, including those who may have dialed in by 
phone, please identify yourselves, provide your street address and state the spelling of your 
name when addressing the Commissioners. 

 
Comments are for any issue. Please limit individual comments to five (5) minutes to allow 
time for others wishing to speak and direct all questions and comments to the President.  

 

Announcements  

 
▪ Pocono Township will hold its annual Spring Cleanup from Thursday, April 30 through Saturday, May 

1, 2021. Proof of Township residency is required. Residents can bring their difficult-to-dispose-of 
items to the Township building between 7:30 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. each day. Disposal fees begin at 
$5.00 for a carload and $10.00 for a pick-up truck load, with higher fees depending on size of vehicle 
or trailer load. Electronics are collected at no charge. Please note that this public service is offered for 
residential users only. If you have any questions, please call the Township office directly at 570-629-
1922. 

▪ Mark your calendars for Pocono Township’s annual Community Day on Saturday, August 14 (with an 
August 15 rain date). We will have a variety of activities, exhibitors and food for the whole family, with 
fundraising opportunities to support our Fire Company and Library.  

▪ If you have not already, we would encourage you to sign up for the Township newsletter at 
www.poconopa.gov, follow our Facebook page for frequent community updates and subscribe to our 
township-wide Savvy Citizen notification system at www.savvycitizenapp.com.  

    
Hearings – None  
 
Presentations – None  
 
 
  

http://www.poconopa.gov/
http://www.savvycitizenapp.com/


Pocono Township BOC Agenda  April 5, 2021                  

2 
 

 

Resolutions  
 
▪ Resolution 2021-05 – Motion to approve the expenditure of $135,184.00 for a 2019 Ford F-550 

Bucket Truck and authorizing the execution of a lease purchase agreement with Bank Capital 
Services, DBA F.N.B. Equipment Finance. (Action Item) 
 

▪ Resolution 2021-06 – Motion to approve the expenditure of $142,953.66 for a 2021 Tiger Boom 
Mower and authorizing the execution of a lease purchase agreement with Bank Capital Services, 
DBA F.N.B. Equipment Finance. (Action Item) 

 

▪ Resolution 2021-07 – Motion to approve the submission of a Community Conservation 
Partnerships Program grant application to the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation & 
Natural Resources (DCNR) for costs associated with proposed enhancements at TLC Park in an 
amount not to exceed $250,000.00. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
▪ Motion to approve the minutes of the March 15, 2021 regular meeting of the Board of 

Commissioners. (Action Item) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
                                
1. Personnel  
 
2. Financial Transactions 
  

a. Motion to ratify vouchers payable received through March 31, 2021 in the amount of 
$115,933.64. (Action Item) 

b. Ratify gross payroll for pay periods ending March 21, 2021 in the amount of $102,048.37 
(Action Item) 

c. Motion to approve vouchers payable received through March 31, 2021 in the amount of 
$250,371.63. (Action Item) 

d. Motion to approve sewer operating fund expenditures through March 11, 2021 in the amount 
of $21,779.29. (Action Item) 

e. Motion to approve capital reserve fund expenditures through March 31, 2021 in the amount of 
$19,865.60. (Action Item)  

f. Motion to approve Fire Tax disbursement of $31,676.55 to the Pocono Township Volunteer 
Fire Company. (Action Item) 

 
3. Travel/Training Authorizations – None  
 
Report of the President  

 
Richard Wielebinski  
 
▪ Motion to award Spring and Fall Cleanup bids to the lowest bidder, per the bid opening of April 2. 

(Action Item) 
 
Commissioner Comments 

 
Jerrod Belvin – Vice President    
 
▪ COVID-19/Emergency Management Update 
▪ FEMA Flood Mitigation grant application 
▪ Monroe County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
 
Ellen Gnandt – Commissioner 



Pocono Township BOC Agenda  April 5, 2021                  

3 
 

 

 
Jerry Lastowski – Commissioner 
 
Keith Meeker – Commissioner 
 
Reports  
 
Zoning  
 
Emergency Services 
 
▪ Police  
▪ EMS 
▪ Fire 
 
Public Works Report  
 
▪ Current Public Works projects report 
▪ Active bid advertisements for Township Cleanup Days and material purchases 
▪ Update – Park Lane Culvert Replacement – Dirt and Gravel Grant 
▪ Update – Well at MVP  
 
Administration – Manager’s Report 
 
▪ Open Items Update  

o Migration of Township file servers to Egnyte platform 

o Grant application to Pocono Forests & Waters  

o Township-wide mail newsletter in progress 

o Securing remaining LSA monies from 2018 to purchase two MDT units for the Police 

o Hiring for Mountain View Park staff 

▪ Update – Appraisal of 114 Alger Avenue  

▪ Update – Pending grant applications for the Township’s LSA, Multimodal & Recreation Grant 

submissions  

▪ Discussion regarding the Wine Press Inn owner’s interest in the purchase of the adjoining Township 

parcel on Bartonsville Avenue – No update  

▪ Evaluation of Township’s Wireless Carrier – Verizon vs. FirstNet (ATT)  

▪ Regional HSPS Comprehensive Plan – No update. 

Township Engineer Report 
 
▪ St. Paul’s Lutheran Drainage Basin 
▪ Archer Lane Drainage Issues 
▪ Righthand turn lanes from Rt. 611 onto Rimrock Road and Bartonsville Avenue – Onsite meeting with 

PennDOT.  
 
Township Solicitor Report  
 
▪ Discussion regarding I-80 parcel easement request – Jonathan Weber (Possible Action Item) 
▪ Update – Kelly Family Trust  
▪ Zoning Hearing Board Update 

o Appeal of Ryan Possinger  
o Butz Lane STR 

 

Public Comment 

Please limit individual comments to 5 minutes to allow time for others wishing to speak and direct all 
questions and comments to the President.  

 



Pocono Township BOC Agenda  April 5, 2021                  

4 
 

 

Adjournment  

Board will adjourn into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing litigation and personnel 
issues. 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE 

OF $135,184.00 FOR A 2019 FORD F-550 BUCKET TRUCK AND AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION OF A CERTAIN LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH BANK 

CAPITAL SERVICES LLC, D/B/A F.N.B. EQUIPMENT FINANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, Township of Pocono (the “Lessee”) is a political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “Commonwealth”) and is duly organized and existing under 

the laws of the Commonwealth; and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the governing body of the Lessee (the “Board of 

Commissioners”) is authorized to acquire, dispose of and encumber real and personal property, 

including, without limitation, rights and interests in property, leases and easements necessary to 

the functions or operations of the Lessee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Lessee has determined that it is necessary and 

advisable to lease the following property: 2019 Ford F-550 Bucket Truck (the “Leased Property”); 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Lessee has determined that the costs of the Leased 

Property to be $135,184.00; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Lessee desires to enter into a tax- exempt Lease Purchase Agreement (the 

“Lease Agreement”) with Bank Capital Services LLC, d/b/a F.N.B. Equipment Finance, as lessor 

(the “Lessor”) to finance the costs of the Leased Property. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners as follows: 

 

 1. The Leased Property.  The Lessee hereby authorizes and approves the acquisition 

of the Leased Property and does hereby ratify and confirm all action heretofore taken by officers 

and officials of the Lessee and others pursuant to direction of the Lessee in proceeding with the 

acquisition of the Leased Property.  The Lessee shall proceed with the acquisition of the Leased 

Property and the necessary financing to fund the Leased Property and related costs and expenses. 

 

 2. Authorization and Approval of the Lease Agreement.  The Lease Agreement, 

hereafter, including in such defined term all related documents therewith, each document 

substantially in the form presented at this meeting, are approved together with such changes as 

may be approved by the officers and officials of the Lessee executing the same, their execution to 

be deemed conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 

 Proper officers of the Lessee are authorized and directed, as applicable, to execute and 

acknowledge the Lease Agreement and to deliver the same to the Lessor for execution, in the form 

approved by this Section. 



 

 3. Annual Appropriations. The Lessee’s payment obligations under the Lease 

Agreement shall constitute a current expense of Lessee subject to annual appropriation or renewal 

by the Board of Commissioners and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of Lessee in 

contravention of any applicable constitutional, statutory or charter limitation or requirement 

concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything contained herein constitute 

a pledge of the full faith and credit of Lessee.    

 

 4. Designation as “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations”.  The Lessee hereby 

designates the principal component of its payment obligations under the Lease Agreement in the 

amount of $135,184.00 as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations and rulings thereunder.  

The Lessee represents and expects that the total amount of its obligations so designated and to be 

designated during the current calendar year does not and will not exceed $10,000,000. 

 

 5. General Authorization.  Proper officers and officials of the Lessee are authorized 

and directed to execute and deliver such documents (in addition to documents hereinbefore 

mentioned) and do such things as are required in connection with undertaking of the acquisition 

of the Leased Property, including payment of costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, 

and as otherwise may be required to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution.   

 

 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 

 

 7. Severability.  In the event any provisions, section, sentence, clause or part of this 

Resolution shall be held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair any remaining 

provision, section, sentence, clause or part of this Resolution, it being the intent of the Board of 

Commissioners that such remainder shall be and shall remain in force and effect. 

 

 8. Repealer.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions inconsistent herewith are expressly 

repealed to the extent of such inconsistencies. 

 

 DULY ADOPTED, by the Board of Commissioners of Township of Pocono, this ____ 

day of ________________, 2021.  

 

ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 

       Board of Commissioners 

 

By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 

Print Name:   Taylor Munoz    Print Name:   Richard Wielebinski 

Title:  Township Manager   Title:    President 

 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE 

OF $142,953.66 FOR A 2021 TIGER FL50MBGLRS BOOM MOWER SN: 5949305 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CERTAIN LEASE PURCHASE 

AGREEMENT WITH BANK CAPITAL SERVICES LLC, D/B/A F.N.B. EQUIPMENT 

FINANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, Township of Pocono (the “Lessee”) is a political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “Commonwealth”) and is duly organized and existing under 

the laws of the Commonwealth; and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the governing body of the Lessee (the “Board of 

Commissioners”) is authorized to acquire, dispose of and encumber real and personal property, 

including, without limitation, rights and interests in property, leases and easements necessary to 

the functions or operations of the Lessee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Lessee has determined that it is necessary and 

advisable to lease the following property: 2021 Tiger FL50MBGLRS Boom Mower SN: 5949305 

(The “Leased Property”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Lessee has determined that the costs of the Leased 

Property to be $142,953.66; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Lessee desires to enter into a tax- exempt Lease Purchase Agreement (the 

“Lease Agreement”) with Bank Capital Services LLC, d/b/a F.N.B. Equipment Finance, as lessor 

(the “Lessor”) to finance the costs of the Leased Property. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners as follows: 

 

 1. The Leased Property.  The Lessee hereby authorizes and approves the acquisition 

of the Leased Property and does hereby ratify and confirm all action heretofore taken by officers 

and officials of the Lessee and others pursuant to direction of the Lessee in proceeding with the 

acquisition of the Leased Property.  The Lessee shall proceed with the acquisition of the Leased 

Property and the necessary financing to fund the Leased Property and related costs and expenses. 

 

 2. Authorization and Approval of the Lease Agreement.  The Lease Agreement, 

hereafter, including in such defined term all related documents therewith, each document 

substantially in the form presented at this meeting, are approved together with such changes as 

may be approved by the officers and officials of the Lessee executing the same, their execution to 

be deemed conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 



 Proper officers of the Lessee are authorized and directed, as applicable, to execute and 

acknowledge the Lease Agreement and to deliver the same to the Lessor for execution, in the form 

approved by this Section. 

 

 3. Annual Appropriations. The Lessee’s payment obligations under the Lease 

Agreement shall constitute a current expense of Lessee subject to annual appropriation or renewal 

by the Board of Commissioners and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of Lessee in 

contravention of any applicable constitutional, statutory or charter limitation or requirement 

concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything contained herein constitute 

a pledge of the full faith and credit of Lessee.    

 

 4. Designation as “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations”.  The Lessee hereby 

designates the principal component of its payment obligations under the Lease Agreement in the 

amount of $142,953.66 as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations and rulings thereunder.  

The Lessee represents and expects that the total amount of its obligations so designated and to be 

designated during the current calendar year does not and will not exceed $10,000,000. 

 

 5. General Authorization.  Proper officers and officials of the Lessee are authorized 

and directed to execute and deliver such documents (in addition to documents hereinbefore 

mentioned) and do such things as are required in connection with undertaking of the acquisition 

of the Leased Property, including payment of costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, 

and as otherwise may be required to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution.   

 

 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 

 

 7. Severability.  In the event any provisions, section, sentence, clause or part of this 

Resolution shall be held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair any remaining 

provision, section, sentence, clause or part of this Resolution, it being the intent of the Board of 

Commissioners that such remainder shall be and shall remain in force and effect. 

 

 8. Repealer.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions inconsistent herewith are expressly 

repealed to the extent of such inconsistencies. 

 

 DULY ADOPTED, by the Board of Commissioners of Township of Pocono, this ____ 

day of ________________, 2021.  

 

ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 

       Board of Commissioners 

 

By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 

Print Name:   Taylor Munoz    Print Name:   Richard Wielebinski 

Title:  Township Manager   Title:    President 

 
 

 



RESOLUTION 2021-07 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SUBMISSION OF A COMMUNITY 

CONSERVATION PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 

TO THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL RESOURCES 

 

 

 

Be it herby resolved, that the Commissioners of Pocono Township, Monroe County, Pennsylvania 

approve the submission of a Community Conservation Partnerships Program grant application to 

the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) for costs associated 

with proposed enhancements at TLC Park in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00.  The scope of 

this grant will include construction and renovation costs associated with the previously referenced 

project. 

 

DULY ADOPTED at a meeting of the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners, this ____day 

of April, 2021. 

 

ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 

       Board of Commissioners 

 

By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 

Print Name:   Taylor Munoz    Print Name:   Richard Wielebinski 

Title:  Township Manager   Title:    President 

 



   March 15, 2021                   

1 
 

 

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

March 15, 2021  7:00 p.m. 

 
 
The regular meeting of the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners was held remotely on March 15, 

2021 via video and teleconference and was opened by President Rich Wielebinski at 7:00 p.m. followed 

by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: Jerrod Belvin, present; Ellen Gnandt, present; Jerry Lastowski, present; Keith Meeker, present; 

and Rich Wielebinski, present. 

 

In Attendance: Leo DeVito, Township Solicitor, Broughal & DeVito; Jon Tresslar, Township Engineer, 

Boucher & James, Inc.; Taylor Muñoz, Township Manager; Paola Razzaq, Fiscal Administrator; Bob 

Sargent, Roadmaster; Krisann Wean, Administrative Assistant; and Donna Kenderdine, Court Reporter. 

 

Public Comments – No public comment. 
 
Announcements 

 
▪ Pocono Township will hold its annual Spring Cleanup from Thursday, April 30 through Saturday, May 

1, 2021. Proof of Township residency is required. Residents can bring their difficult-to-dispose-of 
items to the Township building between 7:30 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. each day. Disposal fees begin at 
$5.00 for a carload and $10.00 for a pick-up truck load, with higher fees depending on size of vehicle 
or trailer load. Electronics are collected at no charge. Please note that this public service is offered for 
residential users only. If you have any questions, please call the Township office directly at 570-629-
1922. 

▪ If you have not already, we would encourage you to sign up for the Township newsletter at 
www.poconopa.gov, follow our Facebook page for frequent community updates and subscribe to our 
township-wide Savvy Citizen notification system at www.savvycitizenapp.com. 

 
Hearings 
 
▪ Ordinance 2021-02 – Amendment to Pocono Township’s Transient Dwelling Use (TDU) 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by E. Gnandt, to open a public hearing on Ordinance 2021-
02 for consideration of amending certain provisions of Chapter 302 of the Pocono Township Code of 
Ordinances, Transient Dwelling Use of Single-Family Dwellings. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
L. DeVito explained the Township has a health, safety, and welfare Ordinance to govern short-term 
rentals, which are allowed in commercial and recreational districts. The purpose of this amendment is 
to limit the number of guests to not more than fourteen individuals, provided that the home is sufficient 
to safely house those individuals. T. Muñoz clarified the amendment contains changes to the two-
strike provision allowing Zoning officials to rescind, revoke, or not issue permits to short-term rental 
operators with ongoing compliance issues. No public comment. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by E. Gnandt, to close the public hearing on Ordinance 
2021-02. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to amend Chapter 302 of the Pocono 
Township Code of Ordinances, Transient Dwelling Use of Single-Family Dwellings, limiting overnight 
occupancy of short-term rentals to no more than 14 individuals and further clarifying the license 
revocation provision for repeat violations. E. Gnandt stated she is not in favor of the Ordinance due to 
concerns with the capacity limitations. L. DeVito clarified the amendment would only affect homes that 
can accommodate more than fourteen individuals. Roll call vote: J. Belvin, yes; E. Gnandt, no; J. 
Lastowski, yes; K. Meeker, yes; R. Wielebinski, yes. Motion carried. 
 

http://www.poconopa.gov/
http://www.savvycitizenapp.com/


   March 15, 2021                   

2 
 

 

▪ Ordinance 2021-03 – Amendment to the Pocono Township Sign Ordinance 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Belvin, to open a public hearing for consideration of an 
amendment to the Pocono Township Code of Ordinances, by amending certain provisions of Chapter 
470, Zoning, Article II, Terminology, and Article VII, Signs, and repealing all ordinances inconsistent 
therewith. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
L. DeVito explained the proposed amendments clarify language issues and other issues discovered in 
the ordinance over time, including regulations governing billboards. The Monroe County Planning 
Commission has reviewed the amendment language twice with no substantive comments. E. Gnandt 
stated the existing ordinance prohibits moving images on electronic billboards, but there are existing 
billboards that having moving images, so the Township has not been enforcing the Ordinance, and 
has not cited anyone recently. T. Muñoz indicated several notices of violation were sent to sign 
owners with no response, and there are efforts underway to bring all sign owners into compliance. No 
public comment. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to close the public hearing on Ordinance 
2021-03. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to amend the Pocono Township Code of 
Ordinances, by amending certain provisions of Chapter 470 – Zoning, Article II – Terminology, and 
Article VII – Signs, and repealing all ordinances inconsistent therewith. Roll call vote: J. Belvin, yes; E. 
Gnandt, no; J. Lastowski, yes; K. Meeker, yes; R. Wielebinski, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Presentations 
 
Zach Williard, PFM Financial Advisors, and Jens Damgaard, Township Tax Counsel with Eckert 
Seamans, provided an update regarding the RFP for Sewer Revenue Note Proposals. Z. Williard 
provided an update and presentation regarding the proposals received from several banks through 
the competitive RFP process. Explained that if the Township wants to move forward with accepting 
one of the proposals, tax counsel will prepare all necessary documents to prepare a debt ordinance to 
lock in the new interest rate. E. Gnandt asked when the estimates begin assuming the CAP rate and 
what would happen if the Township does nothing with its debt. J. Lastowski asked for clarification as 
to what determines when the CAP rate of each loan begins. R. Wielebinski clarified that the Township 
would be rolling all three loans into one and, if the Township chooses the First Keystone proposal, the 
Township may be able to pay off the remaining debt at the end of the term in full without incurring the 
higher cap rate. First Keystone would require establishing a banking relationship with $250,000 kept 
in a deposit account. J. Lastowski asked if the Sewer Fund and proposed projects would be 
negatively impacted by the Township paying down $1 million of debt as part of the refinancing and 
keeping the $250,000 in a First Keystone account. P. Razzaq indicated there is a CD at ESSA for 
sewer construction that can be moved to Keystone bank once it matures to fulfill their $250,000 
requirement. J. Damgaard indicated the Board was giving the professionals guidance tonight with the 
final decision to happen when the Ordinance is approved at the next sewer meeting. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Belvin, to move entire sewer debt for Pocono 
Township to First Keystone Bank for 10 years at a fixed rate of 1.4% with reset at 45% of Wall Street 
Journal prime rate, and prepare a debt Ordinance for action at the April 5, 2021 Sewer Committee 
meeting. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Resolutions 
 
▪ Resolution 2021-04 – Motion to grant a two-year extension of time from April 3, 2022 for 

completion of the remaining portion of a private access road as shown on the approved Margaret 
and Christopher Kinsley Minor Subdivision Plan. Deanna Schmoyer, D&D Engineering, indicated 
the Kinsleys must complete a cul-de-sac or turnaround area as part of the original private access 
road plans. 

 



   March 15, 2021                   

3 
 

 

J. Belvin made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to grant a two-year extension of time from April 
3, 2022 for completion of the remaining portion of a private access road as shown on the approved 
Margaret and Christopher Kinsley Minor Subdivision Plan. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to approve the minutes of the March 1, 2021 
regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Personnel 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to hire Matthew Bonham, Brandon Buchan, 
Ethan Reese, Frank Anico, and Dustin Stevens as 2021 seasonal park workers at a rate of $12.00 per 
hour, as provided for in the 2021 Township budget. E. Gnandt asked if staff were comfortable with the 
applicants. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Belvin, to re-hire Kevin Daher as the seasonal Park Lead 
at a rate of $18.00 per hour, as provided for in the 2021 Township budget. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to re-hire Jack Manuel for a seasonal position at 
a rate of $17.00 per hour. E. Gnandt asked question regarding compensation versus another employee. 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
2. Financial Transactions 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by E. Gnandt, to ratify vouchers payable received through 
March 11, 2021 in the amount of $109,849.64. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to ratify gross payroll for pay periods ending 
February 21, 2021 in the amount of $109,081.90. E. Gnandt asked if this includes any adjustments per 
the arbitration. T. Muñoz indicated it did not include adjustments per the arbitration and would be reflected 
on the next payroll. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Belvin, to approve vouchers payable received through 
March 11, 2021 in the amount of $184,003.79. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to approve sewer operating fund expenditures 
through March 11, 2021 in the amount of $118,624.29. J. Lastowski asked whether Township 
time/equipment is being reimbursed by the sewer. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to approve sewer construction fund expenditures 
through March 11, 2021 in the amount of $388.75. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to approve capital reserve fund expenditures 
through March 11, 2021 in the amount of $436.50. All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3. Travel/Training Authorizations – No travel/training authorizations. 
 
Report of the President 
 
Richard Wielebinski 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by E. Gnandt, to waive Mountain View Park pavilion and 
Heritage Center rental fees for Girls on the Run for two meetings per week for the months of April and 
May 2021. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 



   March 15, 2021                   

4 
 

 

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to waive Mountain View Park Pavilion 3 rental 
fees for Boy Scout Troop 85’s Summer Court of Honor Picnic on Sunday, August 8, 2021. All in favor. 
Motion carried. 
 
▪ Update – Fish Hill Road Right-of-Way and drainage culvert issues – No update. 
 
Commissioner Comments 
 
Jerrod Belvin – Vice President    
 
▪ COVID-19/Emergency Management Update – No update. 
▪ FEMA Flood Mitigation grant application – Expect to hear about the Flood Mitigation grant application 

late summer. 
▪ Monroe County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – Moving forward with the plan update. Next meeting 

is March 26,2021. 
 
J. Belvin made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to grant permission to Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. to designate 
the Pocono Township public meeting room as an off-site Emergency Operations Center, should an 
emergency occur at their facility that would require site evacuation and render their emergency operations 
facilities inoperable. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
▪ J. Belvin shared that the Township experienced a power outage and the internet was down as the 

generator failed again. The Township is losing money every time there is an outage. Discussion 
continued regarding various generator loads, Township needs and options moving forward. J. 
Tresslar and T. Muñoz will find out what the Township needs, assess portable vs. permanent, and 
bring their findings back to the Board of Commissioners. 

 
Ellen Gnandt – Commissioner – No updates. 
 
Jerry Lastowski – Commissioner 
 
▪ Pocono Jackson Joint Water Authority (PJJWA) Update – Asked Board members whether they felt it 

would be worthwhile to ask Pocono representatives on the PJJWA Board to report back to the BOC 
approximately every three months with a report of any activity being addressed by the PJJWA. Feels 
it would be helpful to open up communications and keep the BOC informed. 

 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by J. Belvin, to have PJJWA representatives provide a report 
every three months to the BOC with any pertinent issues. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
▪ Route 314 was reopened after UGI work. Jerry asked whether the road will be repaved. J. Belvin 

confirmed they plan on a repave in the May timeframe when the asphalt plants reopen. 
 
▪ Asked about whether any further paving will be completed on the Swiftwater Route 611 project. 

Indicated that last fall the Township was told there would be one final coat. T. Muñoz will confirm 
completion of the paving and find out what remaining work they will be completing to finish the 
project. 

 
Keith Meeker – Commissioner – No comment. 
 
Reports 
 
Zoning – No report.  
 
Emergency Services 
 
▪ Police – No report. 
▪ EMS – No report. 
▪ Fire – No report. 



   March 15, 2021                   

5 
 

 

 
Public Works Report 
 
▪ Current Public Works projects report – Moving forward with carrying out Spring projects in the 

Township.  
▪ Active bid advertisements for Township Cleanup Days and material purchases – April 2, 2021 is bid 

opening date for cleanup days. 
▪ Update – Park Lane Culvert Replacement – Dirt and Gravel Grant – Met last week with the Monroe 

County Conservation District. Waiting for DEP permit. 
▪ Update – Well at MVP – All components were put back in bathhouse today. Well pump was replaced 

and working last Thursday. Asked the Board about option of having Craig LaBarre do water testing 
once per month. T. Muñoz noted Suburban Testing Labs does the Park water testing regularly and 
suggested retaining Craig’s services as the Township’s certified operator and for seasonal startup. 
The Seasonal Startup Plan and the Operations and Maintenance Plan were submitted to DEP last 
week. Waiting for response. 

▪ Fire company approached R. Sargent and noted 53 fire hydrants are unmarked with a pole and/or 
flag, making them difficult to locate during inclement weather. 

 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to purchase 53 spring-mounted fire hydrant 
markers through USA Blue Book at $13.89 for a total of $736.17. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
J. Lastowski asked whether there should be an ordinance that requires business owner/individual to clear 
fire hydrants. 
 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by K. Meeker, to have L. DeVito develop an ordinance to require 
that individuals/business owners keep their fire hydrants clear of any snow/debris or anything else that 
would interfere with use of the hydrant. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Administration – Manager’s Report 
 
E. Gnandt made a motion, seconded by J. Belvin, to authorize the Township Manager to proceed with 

submitting a mini-grant application to the Pocono Forests & Waters Grant Program for an amount not to 

exceed $10,000 for the purpose of developing public access to The Old Learn Farm parcel on Learn 

Road, including installation of a parking area and trail development. All in favor. Motion carried. 

 

▪ Next steps regarding dangerous structure located at 17 Summit Drive in Pocono Manor – No 

response was received from the property owner who lives in New Jersey. Stated there are no 

remaining options to remediate the property that do not include the Township taking on the financial 

responsibility and liability of acquiring or demolishing the property. L. DeVito stated the site would 

have to be inspected and checked for asbestos and underground tanks, which would need 

remediation before demolishing. He advised if the Township is inclined, to petition the court for 

authority to enter on the property to remove or take down the building. 

▪ Update – Appraisal of 114 Alger Avenue – Spoke with property owner and Tom McKeown is 

completing an appraisal. 

▪ Update – Pending grant applications for the Township’s LSA, Multimodal & Recreation Grant 

submissions – These grants have monies allocated but the release of funding is delayed due to 

political actions by the Governor’s administration. 

▪ Discussion regarding the Wine Press Inn owner’s interest in the purchase of the adjoining Township 

parcel on Bartonsville Avenue – No update. 

▪ Evaluation of Township’s Wireless Carrier – Verizon vs. FirstNet (ATT) – No update. 

▪ Regional HSPS Comprehensive Plan – No update. 

▪ Discussion regarding opening of dedicated Fire Tax bank account – It was determined last year, after 

talking to the county assessment office, tax collector and other Townships, that Pocono Township 

residents should pay a combined municipal and fire tax in one check to the tax collector. The tax 

collector will submit everything to the Township, who will send the fire company their check. For this 



   March 15, 2021                   

6 
 

 

to happen, a separate account is needed that would receive the fire tax funds for payment to the fire 

company. 

 

J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to open a new checking account with ESSA 

Bank and Trust for the purpose of depositing the fire tax revenue for issuance to the fire department and 

to add the Board of Commissioners, Township Manager, and Treasurer as authorized signatories on that 

account. E. Gnandt asked how the tax revenue received would be broken down for the Township. T. 

Muñoz indicated the tax collector would provide the breakdown. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

▪ J. Belvin inquired about Archer Lane drainage issues and their amusement tax permit. T. Muñoz 

stated they are putting in another drainage swale and, while the amusement tax application was 

picked up at the Township, a completed application has not been returned. 
 

Township Engineer Report 
 
▪ St. Paul’s Lutheran Drainage Basin – Spoke with engineer and things are moving forward. 
▪ Archer Lane Drainage Issues – Property owner is installing another drainage swale. 
▪ Righthand turn lanes from Rt. 611 onto Rimrock Road and Bartonsville Avenue – Setting up an onsite 

meeting with PennDOT and getting new traffic counts as requested. PennDOT’s consultant called 
regarding funds they have available to help with the improvements. 

▪ Fish Hill Road Drainage Issues – Contacted HOA members and will be meeting with them this 
Wednesday morning onsite in order to finalize survey and easement plan for the project. 

 
Township Solicitor Report 
 
▪ During a meeting with the Pocono Heritage Land Trust (PHLT), it was determined that the Township 

would assign its interest as holder of the easement to the PHLT and the Township would become the 
qualified beneficiary under that agreement. Assignment agreement was drafted for passage. 

 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to approve the Assignment Agreement 
between Pocono Township and the Pocono Heritage Land Trust (PHLT) designating PHLT as the Holder 
of the Conservation Easement and Pocono Township as the Qualified Beneficiary for the Learn 
Conservation Easement, Monroe County tax parcel number 12.8.2.79. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
E. Gnandt noted the signature page refers to “Pennsylvania Heritage” and it should be “Pocono Heritage.” 
 
▪ Discussion regarding I-80 parcel easement request – Jonathan Weber – T. Muñoz reached out to Mr. 

Weber and information was provided that they contend supports their position that the Township is 
required to give them an easement for access to their property. L. DeVito stated the historical 
conveyances of this property are convoluted at best and it was requested that J. Tresslar review and 
give a ballpark estimate of what it is going to cost to clarify its history. J. Lastowski asked if this was 
the Township’s responsibility to determine whether the right-of-way is required or is it on the 
requestor to do the research and spend the money to determine that. L. DeVito confirmed that Mr. 
Weber has alleged and set forth in his letter that the documents that he provided demonstrate that he 
is entitled to easement access, so now it is incumbent upon the Township to confirm. 

▪ Update – Gravatts Way Court Injunction – Have not received a hearing date. Requesting an 
executive session following tonight’s meeting to discuss more details. 

▪ Update – Kelly Family Trust – Scheduling conflict with the judge. A trial in this case will be held in July 
or early August and the Board will be informed of that date. 

▪ Zoning Hearing Board Update 
o Appeal of Ryan Possinger – Matter will be concluded as far as testimony and presentation 

March 30, 2021 at 5 pm. 
o Butz Lane STR – This was scheduled for next week and has been continued. Mr. McGlynn 

will be out of town during that week and his presence is needed to testify. 
 
Public Comment – No public comment. 
 



   March 15, 2021                   

7 
 

 

Adjournment 

 

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by E. Gnandt, to adjourn the meeting at 9:12 p.m. and go into 

executive session for the purpose of discussing litigation and personnel issues and will not return. E. 

Gnandt stated we need to disclose what litigation is being referenced. L. DeVito indicated it is the AAA 

Pocono Real Estate Gravatts Way litigation. All in favor. Motion carried. 

 



3/31/2021

Ratify

General Fund 113,219.84$                 

Sewer Operating 2,713.80$                     

Sewer Construction -$                              

Capital Reserve -$                              

Bill List

TOTAL General Fund 250,371.63$                 

TOTAL Sewer OPERATING Fund 21,779.29$                   

TOTAL Sewer CONSTRUCTION Fund -$                              

TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund 19,865.60$                   

Liquid Fuels -$                              

Fire Tax Disbursement 31,676.55$                   

Budget Adjustments -$                              

Budget Appropriations -$                              

Interfund Transfer

Notes:

POCONO TOWNSHIP 
Monday, April 5, 2021

SUMMARY

Summary    04-5-2021 bills list    1 OF 6



3/31/2021

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

Payroll 03/26/2021 PAYROLL ENDING 3/21/21 102,048.37$      
TOTAL PAYROLL 102,048.37$      

General Expenditures
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

3/15/2021 60713 CARDMEMBER SERVICES OPERATION SUPPLIES 586.00$             

3/15/2021 60714 CARDMEMBER SERVICES TWP SUPPLIES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,537.39$          

3/15/2021 60715 KYOCERA COPIER LEASES 366.56$             

3/15/2021 60716 VERIZON POLICE CELLPHONES 606.80$             

3/23/2021 60717 PPL ELECTRIC SERVICE 2,860.57$          

3/23/2021 60718 VERIZON TWP CELLS PHONES 305.84$             

3/23/2021 60719 VERIZON TWP IPADS 100.06$             

3/23/2021 60720 STAPLES OFFICE SUPPLIES 152.19$             

3/25/2021 60721 ADP PAYROLL SERVICES 1,600.06$          

3/25/2021 60722 MONROE CO ASSESSMENT OFFICE PROPERTY RECORDS 56.00$               

TOTAL General Fund Bills 11,171.47$        

Sewer Operating Fund

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

3/23/2021 1851 BLUE RIDGE PHONE SERVICE PUMP STATIONS 127.80$             

3/23/2021 1852 METED ELECTRIC SERVICE 223.37$             

3/23/2021 1853 PPL ELECTRIC SERVICE 2,242.58$          

3/23/2021 1854 VERIZON SEWER MODEMS 120.05$             

2,713.80$          

Sewer Construction Fund
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund -$                   

Capital Reserve Fund
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund -$                   

TOTAL General Fund 113,219.84$                                                   

TOTAL Sewer Operating 2,713.80$                                                       Authorized by:

TOTAL Sewer Construction -$                                                                

Total Capital Reserve -$                                                                

Transferred by:

115,933.64$                                                   

POCONO TOWNSHIP CHECK LISTING 

RATIFY
Monday, April 5, 2021

Ratify    04-5-2021 bills list     Page 2 of 6



3/31/2021

General Fund
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

03/30/2021 60712 Nationwide - 457 EE & ER CONT 3,968.46$           

03/30/2021 60723 Nationwide - 457 EE & ER CONT 4,113.55$           

03/30/2021 60725 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SERVICES MARCH 2021 766.13$              

03/30/2021 60726 Alphonse C. Miller, CCTS CAMELBACK TIF-- TOWNSHIP ONLY 135,630.46$       

03/30/2021 60727 American Computing Services AV System 320.00$              

03/30/2021 60728 AMERICAN UNITED LIFE INSURANCE CO. GTL AND STD PREMIUM 3,152.24$           

03/30/2021 60729 Best Auto Service Center POLICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 935.35$              

03/30/2021 60730 Boucher & James, Inc. ENGINEERING SERVICES 4,357.20$           

03/30/2021 60731 Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P. LEGAL SERVICES 6,707.27$           

03/30/2021 60732 Build All Construction PW BUILDING REPAIR 1,115.00$           

03/30/2021 60733 Classic Quality Homes Overpaid on Building Permit 200021 10.38$                

03/30/2021 60734 D.G. Nicholas Co. PW SUPPLIES 1,327.34$           

03/30/2021 60735 Dailey Resources, LTD PW SUPPLIES 53.38$                

03/30/2021 60736 Deer Country Farm & Lawn, Inc. PW SUPPLIES 19.00$                

03/30/2021 60737 Donna Kenderdine Reporting 3/15/21 Ordinance 2021-02 & 2021-03 85.00$                

03/30/2021 60738 E.M.Kutz, Inc. PW EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 563.74$              

03/30/2021 60739 Foster & Foster, Inc. 1/1/2020 GASB 75 Liability Disclosures for 2020 & 2021 Financial 3,800.00$           

03/30/2021 60740 Furino, Robert UNIFORM REIMBURSEMENT 236.00$              

03/30/2021 60741 Highway Equipment & Supply Co. Customer 231390 683.34$              

03/30/2021 60742 Horwith Freightliner STREET SWEEPER 215.00$              

03/30/2021 60743 Iannazzo, Marc Uniform reimbursement 395.38$              

03/30/2021 60744 J. P. Mascaro & Sons Waste removal 298.15$              

03/30/2021 60745 JDM Consultants, LLC March 2021 Grant Consulting and Advocacy 2,000.00$           

03/30/2021 60746 JNK Hydrotest & Extinguisher Supply Co. Fire extinguisher maintenance 719.95$              

03/30/2021 60747 Kimball Midwest PW supplies 142.68$              

03/30/2021 60748 Lawson Products PW supplies 939.72$              

03/30/2021 60749 Leon Clapper, Inc. Replace Well Pump - Pump Under Warranty 1,734.00$           

POCONO TOWNSHIP CHECK LISTING 

Monday, April 5, 2021

Approve 04-5-2021 bills list   Page 3 of 6



3/31/2021

03/30/2021 60750 Medico Construction Equipment Inc. PW equipment repair 208.85$              

03/30/2021 60751 MetLife - Non Uni. Pen. Plan March ER contriibution 6,729.09$           

03/30/2021 60752 Mignosi, Timothy Uniform reimbursement 269.99$              

03/30/2021 60753 Miller, Larry Uniform reimbursement 198.00$              

03/30/2021 60754 Morton Salt Snow removal supplies 13,280.78$         

03/30/2021 60755 Mountain Road Feed Store PW supplies 37.10$                

03/30/2021 60756 PA Chiefs of Police Association Police new hire expenses 2,258.24$           

03/30/2021 60757 Pocono Record Advertisment 184.80$              

03/30/2021 60758 PSATS CDL Drug/Alcohol Testing 221.00$              

03/30/2021 60759 PSATS UC GROUP TRUST FUND UC Contribution Q1 2021 13,560.34$         

03/30/2021 60760 Reliable Sign and Striping Sign supplies 400.00$              

03/30/2021 60761 RR Donnelley Traffic & non-traffic ciations 61.70$                

03/30/2021 60762 Sargent, Robert Staples Purchase Reimbursement 42.60$                

03/30/2021 60763 SCOTT JAMES Uniform reimbursement 551.56$              

03/30/2021 60764 Shick, Tom Uniform reimbursement 129.99$              

03/30/2021 60765 Signal Service, Inc. Traffic light repair 1,477.50$           

03/30/2021 60766 Starr Uniform Center Uniforms new hires 239.85$              

03/30/2021 60767 Steele's Hardware Operation supplies 264.56$              

03/30/2021 60768 Steele's Hardware Operation supplies 363.04$              

03/30/2021 60769 Strand Pool Supply LLP Operation supplies 30.76$                

03/30/2021 60770 Stroudsburg Electric Motor Service Operation supplies 34.64$                

03/30/2021 60771 Suburban Propane Vehicle fuel 4,749.35$           

03/30/2021 60772 Suburban Testing Labs SDWA Monthly MTV Park 100.00$              

03/30/2021 60773 Tulpehocken Mountain Spring Water Inc TWP water 174.08$              

03/30/2021 60774 UNIFIRST Corporation Uniforms and mats 327.77$              

03/30/2021 60775 US BANK - Lockbox CM9722 Police pension 6,032.47$           

03/30/2021 60776 Verizon Connect Police communications 325.45$              

03/30/2021 60777 Witmer Public Safety Group Police supplies 1,025.00$           

03/30/2021 60778 YCG, Inc. Police equipment maintenance 150.00$              

03/30/2021 60779 Suburban Propane Vehicle fuel 2,818.82$           

03/31/2021 60780 H. M. Beers, Inc. Feb & Mar 2021 SEO Services 2,300.00$           

03/31/2021 60781 SFM Consulting LLC March zoning and building codes contracted services 16,431.17$         

03/31/2021 90792 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SERVICES 2020 1,104.41$           

Approve 04-5-2021 bills list   Page 4 of 6



3/31/2021

TOTAL General Fund 250,371.63$       

Sewer Operating Fund

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

03/30/2021 1855 Boucher & James, Inc. Sewer engineering services 9,668.47$           

03/30/2021 1856 BROUGHAL & DEVITO, L.L.P. Legal services 1,263.25$           

03/30/2021 1857 EEMA O&M Services Group, Inc. March 2021 O&M 5,889.00$           

03/30/2021 1858 J P Mascaro & Sons Waste removal 203.70$              

03/30/2021 1859 Pocono Management Associates LLC Contracted services 2/22 - 3/7 3,271.36$           

03/30/2021 1860 Suburban Propane Heating oil and propane 1,483.51$           

TOTAL Sewer Operating 21,779.29$         

Sewer Construction Fund

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund -$                    

Capital Reserve Fund

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

3/31/2021 1203 BOUCHER AND JAMES ENGINEERING SERVICES CAP PROJECTS 750.00$              

3/31/2021 1204 BOUCHER AND JAMES RIMROCK PROJECT ENGINEERING SERVICES 19,115.60$         

TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund 19,865.60$         

Fire Tax Disbursement

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

3/31/2021 992 POCONO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEP. FIRE TAX MARCH 2021 19,055.38$         

3/31/2021 993 ALPHONSE C MILLER CCTS CAMELBACK TIF 2021 12,621.17$         

TOTAL Fire Tax 31,676.55$         

ESSA

General Fund 250,371.63$                                                            

Approve 04-5-2021 bills list   Page 5 of 6



3/31/2021

Sewer Operating 21,779.29$                                                              

Sewer Construction Fund -$                                                                         Authorized by:___________________________________________

Capital Reserve 19,865.60$                                                              

Fire Tax Disbursement 31,676.55$                                                              

Liquid Fuels -$                                                                         

TOTAL ESSA TRANSFER 323,693.07$                                                            Transferred by:__________________________________________

Approve 04-5-2021 bills list   Page 6 of 6


	4-5-21_BOC_Agenda
	Resolution_2021-05_2019_Ford_F-550_Bucket_Truck
	Resolution_2021-06_2021_Tiger_Boom_Mower_Lease
	Resolution_2021-07_DCNR_C2P2_Resolution
	03-15-21_BOC_Minutes
	04-5-2021 bills list

